




TOWN OF MILTON 
Planning & Economic Development Department 
43 Bombardier Road 
Milton, Vermont 05468-3205 
(802) 893-1186 
miltonvt.org 
 
 

 

MEMO 
TO:  Selectboard & Town Manager 
CC:    Treasurer 
FROM:   Planning Director 
DATE:   January 9, 2016 
SUBJECT:  PLANNING & ZONING PERMIT FEE SCHEDULE AMENDMENT 
 

RECOMMENDED MOTION:  That the Selectboard adopt the Resolution amending the Planning & 
Zoning Permit Fee Schedule as presented. 

 
LEGISLATIVE AUTHORITY:   
The Planning Act grants the Selectboard authority to establish fees according to Vermont Statutes 
Annotated, Title 24, Chapter 117, Subchapter 9, Section 4440, which states: 

(b) The legislative body may prescribe reasonable fees to be charged with respect to the 
administration of bylaws and for the administration of development review. These fees may 
include the cost of posting and publishing notices and holding public hearings and the cost of 
conducting periodic inspections during the installation of public improvements. These fees may 
be required to be payable by the applicant upon submission of the application or prior to 
issuance of permits or certificates of occupancy. 
(c) The legislative body may set reasonable fees for filing of notices of appeal and for other acts as 
it deems proper, the payment of which shall be a condition to the validity of the filing or act 
under this chapter. 
(d) The legislative body may establish procedures and standards for requiring an applicant to 
pay for reasonable costs of an independent technical review of the application. (Added 2003, No. 
115 (Adj. Sess.), § 99.) 

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

 Fees are collected by the Department for zoning permits, development review applications, 
compliance certificates, recording documents, and impact fees and placed in the General Fund.   

o Impact and recording fees are established and accounted for separately (though listed on 
the fee schedule for convenience).   

 The fee schedule was last amended April 4, 2015 by Resolution of the Board.   

 There are three active exemptions to the fee schedule: 
o The Town does not pay fees to itself. 
o The School District does not pay fees per a 2013 Memorandum of Understanding. 
o The Selectboard has also waived all fees associated with the General Stannard House 

project. 

 The Zoning Permit revenue and Planning Fee revenue (for development review) has been relatively 
stable and generally met the established budget (see below). 

 

 Zoning Permit Fees Planning Fees Total Budgeted Revenue 

Fiscal Year 2010 $20,343.30 $12,313 $32,656.30 $34,000 



 
 

Town of Milton Planning Department 
Memo on Planning & Zoning Fee Schedule 

 

Page 2 of 5 
 

Fiscal Year 2011 $18,278.27 $11,111.66 $29,389.93 $34,000 

Fiscal Year 2012 $40,089.30 $13,321.50 $53,410.80 $34,000 

Fiscal Year 2013 $35,761.78 $10,151.46 $45,913.24 $38,890 

Fiscal Year 2014 $26,581.66 $10,879.84 $37,461.50 $39,890 

Fiscal year 2015 $33,059.06 $13,783.86 $46,842.92 $42,000 

 
In FY15, the Planning and Economic Development Department operated on a budget of $274,849, which 
supports a staff of four FTE employees, functionally divided into  

1) administrative support functions (Planning Assistant);  
2) administrative officer functions (Zoning Administrator);  
3) development review and conservation commission support (Town Planner);  and  
4) planning, economic development, and department administration (Planning Director).   

Based on FY15 revenues, planning/permitting fees covered 17% of the Department's operation.  For 
comparison, Colchester's Planning Department has a staff of six, operates on a budget of $583,380, and 
recovers 48% of their operation through fees (See link: Colchester Planning & Zoning Fee Proposal 
Presentation. December 8, 2015).   
 
POLICY QUESTION 

 Fees are assessed by municipalities to offset the cost of delivering a service to a specific beneficiary.   

 A key policy question for the Board is this: to what extent should the program be subsidized by the 
taxpayers as a whole through General Fund revenue versus being funded by the users and direct 
beneficiaries of the program (through fee collection)? 

 On one side, there are the public interests, such as:     
o All property owners and residents benefit from a functional, proactive planning program;  
o Program affordability generally increases overall compliance and grand list accuracy; and  
o Affordability may (for some builders) influence economic development and grand list 

growth. 

 On the other side, the services rendered are for specific properties and property owners undertaking 
development. 

 
PREPARATION PROCESS 
 In November of 2015, the Town Manager requested that Department Heads evaluate their respective 

fee schedules for opportunities to recapture costs (for services rendered) that are aligned with other 
municipalities and the market.  The Planning Department had already prioritized this project for 
2016, and offered to be the first Department to prepare fee amendments. 

 At the Planning Department's FY17 Budget presentation to the Selectboard, the Board (informally) 
expressed support for a review of the Department's fee schedule. 

 In November, Staff discussed amendments goals (shown below). 

 In December, Staff conducted a survey of the 15 most populous  communities in Vermont, as well as 
the adjoining Towns of Westford and Georgia to assess what peer communities charge to support 
their planning and zoning programs.  You can view these fee schedules here.   

 Based on the survey, the Department analyzed comparable projects, evaluated Milton's fee schedule, 
and prepared amendments throughout January. 

 At their second January meetings, the Planning Commission and Development Review Boards were 
presented with draft versions for advisory review and comment by February 8th. 

http://miltonvt.org/images/pdffiles/department/planning/Colchester_PPT.pdf
http://miltonvt.org/images/pdffiles/department/planning/Compiled_Fee_Schedules.pdf.


 
 

Town of Milton Planning Department 
Memo on Planning & Zoning Fee Schedule 

 

Page 3 of 5 
 

 The Department finalized the proposal for Selectboard consideration on February 9, 2016.   
 
AMENDMENT GOALS 
Staff prioritized the following goals: 

 RECOVERING COSTS: Better link permitting fees with the cost of providing review services by 
lowering some fees, increasing others, and establishing new fees for services provided. 

 MARKET ALIGNMENT: Revise fee structure and rates to remain competitive within, and 
comparable to, local market and peer communities. 

 INCENTIVIZE COMPLIANCE: Create incentives for compliance and penalties for non-
compliance; eliminate loopholes for gamesmanship that work against fairness. 

 COMMUNICATE REGULATIONS: Use fee schedule as a primary communication tool to help 
residents/businesses better understand regulatory requirements. 

 
AMENDMENT SUMMARY: 
An overview of the proposed amendments will show that approximately:  

 A quarter are decreases from the current fees paid (targeted to the average residential user to 
increase program participation and customer satisfaction); 

 A quarter of the fees have not changed or changed marginally;  

 A quarter are increases (aimed at closing loopholes, structuring incentives, and covering the 
costs of review); and 

 A quarter are new fees that other communities are charging (aimed at containing costs). 
 
Despite the fee decreases and fee maintenance, we estimate an overall increase in revenues. 
 
ANALYSIS: 

 RECOVERING COSTS:   
Each community develops a unique regulatory and fee program, which can be seen in the diversity 
of each community's fee schedule.   No two communities are the same.  
 
One trend among Vermont's most populous communities' is that they are assessing fees that Milton 
is not, such: 

 Costs associated with public information requests; 
 After-the-fact review fees; 
 Written opinions and file research fees; 
 Expedited review fees; 
 Pre-application consultation fees; and 
 Failed inspection fees. 

This amendment recovers costs by adding missing fees to our schedule.  To understand current and 
proposed fees, see the ATTACHED Fee Analysis Spreadsheet. 
 

 MARKET ALIGNMENT: Our review shows that Milton's planning & zoning services are 
competitively priced.   In the ATTACHED Community Analysis Spreadsheet, you will see figures 
that compare like projects among  Vermont 18 most populated communities.  In this analysis, 
Milton's permitting fees are below average -- and at times -- show wide gaps from Chittenden 
County neighbors, including Westford. 



 
 

Town of Milton Planning Department 
Memo on Planning & Zoning Fee Schedule 

 

Page 4 of 5 
 

 
Of the communities analyzed , Milton permits a: 
1. 2,000 SF single family home at $380; the average is $562. 
2. 3,000 SF duplex at $420; the average $822. 
3. 10,000 SF industrial space at $1,500; the average is $2,404. 
4. 2,000 SF retail space at $700, the average is $614; and  
5. 400 SF residential deck at $40; the average is $75. 

 
Adoption of this amendment would maintain our below average pricing in all categories except the a 
retail scenario, where the current fee would decrease by $50, bringing it closer to the average. 

 

 INCENTIVIZE COMPLIANCE: This schedule aims to improve the operational efficiency and overall 
compliance with the regulations by establishing financial incentives to follow the law.  These include: 
o New fees for after-the-fact  use/construction/occupation application review; 
o New fees for properties with formal violations; 
o Lower fees for applicants who submit their CO/CC application prior to permit expiration; 
o New fees for failed inspections and failed plan review; 
o Closing loopholes; 
o Lower fees for development review applications that undergo a staff consultation prior to 

submission. 
 
These incentives are explained in more detail on the ATTACHED Proposed Fee Schedule.   
 

 COMMUNICATION:  Many users of the planning and zoning program never look at the regulations, 
but almost universally look at the Fee Schedule.  While many fee schedule don't do this, we have 
added more information to the fee schedule to help communicate the regulatory program, as well as 
reduce conflicts over interpretation by including more footnotes.   

 
CONCLUSION: 
Staff finds that this amendment would accomplish the amendment goals with a balanced approach.  
Staff estimates that the Fee Schedule may need to be revisited to address Zoning Amendments being 
contemplated for fall adoption.  If there are lines that are not working, they can be addressed after a 
short trial period.  Also, to provide more information about the DRB processing timeline, the procedure 
is linked below.  Thank you for your consideration of this item. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:   

1. Current Fee Schedule  
2. Proposed Fee Schedule with Explanation 
3. Proposed Fee Schedule without Explanations 
4. Fee Analysis Spreadsheet 
5. Community Analysis Spreadsheet 
6. Link to Colchester Planning & Zoning Fee Proposal Presentation. December 8, 2015 

http://miltonvt.org/images/pdffiles/department/planning/Colchester_PPT.pdf 
7. Link to: DRB Processing Procedure/Timeline 

http://miltonvt.org/images/pdffiles/department/planning/DRB_Processing_Timeline_2015.11
.18.pdf 

http://miltonvt.org/images/pdffiles/department/planning/Colchester_PPT.pdf
http://miltonvt.org/images/pdffiles/department/planning/DRB_Processing_Timeline_2015.11.18.pdf
http://miltonvt.org/images/pdffiles/department/planning/DRB_Processing_Timeline_2015.11.18.pdf


 
 

Town of Milton Planning Department 
Memo on Planning & Zoning Fee Schedule 

 

Page 5 of 5 
 

8. Link to Fee Schedules Surveyed:  
http://miltonvt.org/images/pdffiles/department/planning/Compiled_Fee_Schedules.pdf 

http://miltonvt.org/images/pdffiles/department/planning/Compiled_Fee_Schedules.pdf


TOWN OF MILTON PLANNING & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 
FEE SCHEDULE, LAST AMENDED June 15, 2015 

 
STEPS TO A SUCCESSFULLY OPEN AND CLOSE A ZONING PERMIT 
1. Submit Permit Application 4. Post “P” Sign for Public Notice 7. Town Inspects Construction 
2. Permit Approved 5. Construct 8. CO/CC  Approved  
3. Pick up, Pay & Record Permit 6. Submit Compliance App. (CO/CC)  9. Pick up, Pay and Record CO/CC 
 
ZONING PERMIT FEES 
APPLICATION FEE RECORDING 

FEE 
WHEN IS FEE DUE 

New Residential Building $300 + $0.04 per square foot $10 Upon Permit 
Approval 

One Time Residential Renewal $40 $10 Upon Permit 
Approval 

Residential Alteration/Amendment $40 $10 Upon Permit 
Approval 

Residential Accessory Structures $40 $10 Upon Permit 
Approval 

New Elderly Housing Complex $150 per Dwelling Unit + $0.04 per 
square foot 

$10 Upon Permit 
Approval 

New Multi-family structure $200 per Dwelling Unit + $0.04 per 
square foot 

$10 Upon Permit 
Approval 

New Commercial/Industrial Structure $500 per Unit + $0.10 per square 
foot 

$10 Upon Permit 
Approval 

One Time Commercial/Industrial Renewal $50 $10 Upon Permit 
Approval 

Commercial/Industrial 
Alterations/Amendments 

$50 $10 Upon Permit 
Approval 

Commercial/Industrial Accessory 
Structures 

$50 $10 Upon Permit 
Approval 

Zoning Permit: Sign Permit $5 $10 Upon Permit 
Approval 

 
CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY/COMPLIANCE FEE 
APPLICATION FEE RECORDING FEE WHEN IS FEE DUE 
Certificate of Occupancy/Compliance $25 $10 Upon Certificate of 

Occupancy/Compliance 
Approval 

Impact Fee for new Residential Building 
 

$2651 per dwelling 
unit 

N/A Upon Certificate of 
Occupancy/Compliance 
Approval 

Impact Fee for new Residential Elderly 
Housing Units and 1-bedroom Units 
 

$1988 per dwelling 
unit 

N/A Upon Certificate of 
Occupancy/Compliance 
Approval 

 
OTHER PERMITS 
Highway Access, Municipal Water Permit and Hookup, 
Municipal Sewer Permit and Hookup 

Contact  the Department of Public Works at 802-893-6030 

State Water/Wastewater Contact the State at 802-879-5656 
 
PENALTIES:  IF A FORMAL ZONING VIOLATION NOTICE HAS BEEN ISSUED, A VIOLATION PENALTY FEE OF 2 TIMES THE 
NORMAL FEE WILL BE CHARGED (THIS INCLUDES ZONING, CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE AND DRB APPLICATION FEES 



TOWN OF MILTON PLANNING & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 
FEE SCHEDULE, LAST AMENDED June 15, 2015 

 
DEVELOPMENT REVIEW FEES 
The Development Review Board, or Selectboard (where applicable), conducts hearings on the applications listed below.  
Development applications require approval before a zoning permit can be issued or plat recorded.  Contact the Planning 
and Economic Development Office to determine if your project must undergo development review.  Applicants that 
request concurrent review of two applications will only be charged for the more expensive application fee if both 
reviews can be done within the same hearing.  Please contact the Planning and Economic Development Staff for the 
number of  adjoining property owners applicable to an application. 
APPLICATION FEE ABUTTERS WARNING RECORDING 

FEE 
WHEN IS FEE 
DUE 

Sketch Plan for Subdivisions and 
Planned Unit Developments (PUD) 

$100 (can be 
credited toward 
next phase) 

$2 per 
abutter 

N/A N/A Upon 
Application 

Minor Subdivision/ PUD-Residential 
(6- units) 

$500 + $50/unit or 
lot 

$2 per 
abutter 

$75 $10 Upon 
Application 

Major Subdivision/ PUD-Residential 
(7+ units) 

$1000 + $50 per 
unit or lot 

$2 per 
abutter 

$75 $10 Upon 
Application 

Planned Unit Developments (PUD) $1000 + $50 per 
unit or lot 

$2 per 
abutter 

$75 $10 Upon 
Application 

Subdivision/PUD Amendments $100 $2 per 
abutter 

$75 $10 Upon 
Application 

Administrative PUD Amendments $50 $2 per 
abutter 

N/A $10 Upon 
Application 

Site Plan $300 $2 per 
abutter 

N/A $10 Upon 
Application 

Administrative 
Site Plan Amendment  

$50 $2 per 
abutter 

N/A $10 Upon 
Application 

Site Plan Amendment $100 $2 per 
abutter 

N/A $10 Upon 
Application 

Boundary Line Adjustment $75 per lot involved $2 per 
abutter 

$75 $10 Upon 
Application 

Conditional Use $150 $2 per 
abutter 

$75 $10 Upon 
Application 

Interim Zoning Conditional Use $150 $2 per 
abutter 

$75 $10 Upon 
Application 

Variance $150 $2 per 
abutter 

$75 $10 Upon 
Application 

Appeal of Zoning Administrator’s 
Decision 

$150 $2 per 
abutter 

$75 $10 Upon 
Application 

Expiration of a Subdivision Approval $150 $2 per 
abutter 

$75 $10 Upon 
Application 

 
MISCELLANEOUS FEES: 
Copies of Official Documents $0.05 per page or $0.09 per double-sided page. 
Recording Fee for Official Documents/Approvals $10 per page 
Subdivision Plat/Survey $15 per page 
Escrow Account: Legal Review Fees $500 
 
PENALTIES:  IF A FORMAL ZONING VIOLATION NOTICE HAS BEEN ISSUED, A VIOLATION PENALTY FEE OF 2 TIMES THE 
NORMAL FEE WILL BE CHARGED (THIS INCLUDES ZONING, CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE AND DRB APPLICATION FEES. 



TOWN OF MILTON  
Planning & Economic Development Department  
Visit:  43 Bombardier Road  Milton, Vermont 05468-3205 
Call:  (802) 893-1186 
E-mail: ktreanor@town.milton.vt.us 
Surf:  miltonvt.org/planning 
Hours: Monday - Friday 8 AM to 5 PM, Tuesday 9 AM to 5 PM (except holidays)  

Payment: cash, check, credit/debit card (3% surcharge), e-check ($1.50 surcharge) 

 

FEE SCHEDULE 

 
We're here to help you develop your property according to Milton's Town Plan and regulations. 

If you have questions, or need help completing any form, please contact us! 
 

[Anything within brackets and blue explains the amendment.] 
 

HOW DO I OPEN AND CLOSE A ZONING PERMIT? 
1. Submit a complete application and pay fee. 
2. Compliant permits are approved; non-compliant permits must be denied with an explanation. 
3. The Town mails you the permit and records a notice in the Land Records. 
[Currently, we do not mail permits.  This is a service that has been requested by applicants to avoid a second trip to 
the office.  It will increase compliance with applicants' legal obligation to notice the permit for 15 days (many 
permits sit in the office during this period), reduce office traffic and increase productivity; however, it will increase 
postage and office supply costs -- something we will have to consider in future budgets since all fees go to the 
General Fund, but postage is billed from the Planning Budget.] 
4. Notify your neighbors by posting the red "P" poster where it will be visible from the nearest public 

right-of-way.  The permit takes effect after the 15-day appeal period has expired; permit decisions can 
be appealed. 

5. You can now begin your project!  
6. If you change your project plans, you must amend the permit to update the plans. 
7. If you need more than one year to complete the project, you must renew the permit to keep it valid. 
8. When the project is finished, you must submit a Certificate of Compliance/Occupancy application to 

close your permit; applications submitted prior to the expiration of the Zoning Permit have a reduced 
fee. 

9. Compliant projects are inspected and approved; non-compliant projects must be denied with an 
explanation. 

10. The Town mails you the Certificate and records a notice in the Town's Land Records. 
 

EXPEDITED SERVICES 
[This is a service offered by other Vermont Communities and is a customer service tool that helps avoid daily 
inquiries that are disruptive to productivity.  Permits are normally processed in the order they are received within 
5-7 business days, unless additional follow-up is needed to complete the review.] 

 Expedited review is available upon request and when possible.   

 Please indicate on the application form that you are requesting this service. 

 The surcharge payment is due at the time of filing and will be refunded if the deadline is not met. 
Expedited Zoning Permit Service (5-Business Days 1)  $75 surcharge added to total 
Expedited Certificate of Compliance (3- Business Days 1)  $200 surcharge added to total   
Expedited Certificate of Compliance (5- Business Days 1)  $75 surcharge added to total   
 



 

 

 
 

1.  Business days are the days the Town is open for business and will be calculated on a 24-hour basis.  Example:  If 
the application is filed and paid on Friday at 3:00 p.m., a 3-day expedited permit will be issued by Wednesday at 3:00 
p.m. 

 

ZONING PERMITS           

 Payment is due at the time of filing.   

 Where multiple permit types apply to a single application, the higher fee shall apply. 
 Applications will not be considered complete or filed without payment of required fees.    
[Payment is currently collected upon pick-up.  In our survey of fee schedules, Milton is the only community doing 
post-issuance fee collection.  Collection at filing will address a loss of recording revenue for the permits that are not 
picked up and paid within 30 days (required by24VSA4449) and denials, for which we currently charge nothing.  
Payment at filing will also increase notification compliance]. 

 All Zoning Permits are subject to a $10 recording fee. 
[This pays to record the Memorandum of Municipal Action (called a "notice of issuance" in statute) in the Land 
Records.  This revenue is not assigned to Planning/Zoning fees.]   

 Applications withdrawn prior to issuance of the permit and applications deemed not to require a permit will 
receive a full refund. 

 The Zoning Administrator must act on the application within 30 days of your permit application filing. 
[This is the statutory time frame.  Most permits are turned around within 5-7 business days, unless additional 
follow-up is needed to process the application.] 

 Applicants will be mailed a copy of the permit/decision. 
[We currently ask the applicant to return to the office to pick up and pay issued permits.  Mailing permits will save 
the applicants a second trip to the Municipal Building, reduce office traffic -- freeing up more uninterrupted time -- 
and get permits to applicants faster.  As noted above, it will also increase compliance w/applicants' statutory 
noticing requirements.] 

 Denied applications are eligible for credit for a corrective permit if submitted within 30 days of the denial; the 
credit does not apply to the $10 recording fee.   

[Currently we do not charge any fee for denied applications, but we are required by law to pay the $10 recording 
fee 24VSA4449.  We want to capture that fee by collecting it up front.] 

 Applications for after-the-fact development or applications to correct a formal violation are subject to a surcharge 
penalty (See Penalties section below).   

[This is another fee commonly assessed by other communities to offset enforcement costs.  See Penalty section.] 

 All Zoning Permits require a Certificate of Occupancy/Compliance prior to use or occupancy. 
 

ZONING PERMIT FEE CALCULATOR 
Zoning Permit Application Fee see schedule below + 

Zoning Permit Square Footage Fee 1 (if applicable) #________sq. ft.  x $________= + 

Zoning Permit Unit Fee (if applicable) #________units x $________= + 

SUBTOTAL  = 

Violation Penalty (if applicable) multiply subtotal by 4 + 

After-the-Fact Penalty (if applicable) multiply subtotal by 2 + 

SUBTOTAL  = 

Expedited Review Surcharge(s) (if requested) see schedule above + 

Zoning Permit Recording Fee  + $10 

TOTAL DUE  = 

 
Permit Type        Permit Fee    



 

 

 
 

New Residential Dwelling Unit     $250 per unit +0.10 per sq. ft. 1 

(i.e. Single Family Dwellings, Duplex, Owner-Occupied Triplex, Multi-family Dwellings) 
[Currently new residential (single family/accessory apt) $300+0.04sq.ft.; multi-family $200 per dwelling unit +0.0  
4sq.ft.; and elderly housing $150 per dwelling unit+0.04sq.ft.  Duplex and triplex are not listed, but treated as multi-
family.  These fees have been combined into one category, reducing the cost for a single family dwelling, and 
increasing the cost for multi-family and elderly housing.  In FY2015 Milton issued 12SF, 10Duplex, 3Triplex, 
72MF&elderly.] 
Residential Alteration/Accessory Structure 2& 6   $41 
(i.e. Detached: Shed, Gazebo, Pool, Deck, Play Set, Fabric  Tent/Shelter, Utility Building, Garage, Chicken Coops, 
Addition, Porch, Deck, Lean-to, Breezeway) 
 [Accessory structure is currently "residential accessory structure, and alteration is currently "residential 
alteration/amendment" ($40).  Proposal divides the alterations and amendments and combines alterations and 
accessory structures.  The proposal maintains the existing alteration fee (40), but adds a new fee for new square 
footage to the principal structure to close an infrequent loophole.  We have also created new categories below for 
"alteration: demolition only" and "alteration: change of use only" to reduce fees for these types of straightforward 
alterations.  For amendment, see below. ]   
Residential Permit Amendment 2,  4 &  6    $16   
(Any change to the permit.) 
[Currently "residential alteration/amendment" ($40).  Proposal divides alterations and amendments, reduces fee, 
but adds a new fee for new square footage to a principal structure to close loophole (see footnote 6).  Applicants 
typically seek to amend their permits to make a minor change along the way, which is a normally an easy review -- 
though at times there can be major changes.  More often, amendments are used to correct a material change 
discovered at an inspection (and prior to the permit expiration); in which case the applicants would pay for the 
after-the-fact penalty (double) for not amending the permit.  Even with the new penalty charge, the proposal 
lowers the cost to $32, below what it is currently without a penalty ($40).  This creates the right incentive, but has a 
lesser impact than the current fee schedule. ] 
New Non-Residential      $250 per unit 7 +0.20 per sq. ft. 1 

(i.e. Commercial, Industrial, Institutional, Public) 
[Currently "new commercial/industrial structure" 500+.10/sf.  Combined Commercial/Industrial to include non-
residential uses that are not defined as commercial or industrial by Milton's regulations (such as institutional uses).]   
Non-Residential Alteration/Accessory Structure 2 & 6   $51 
(i.e. Shed/Storage Building, Pavilion, Mechanical Structure/Building, Carport) 
 [Accessory structure is currently "commercial/industrial accessory structure" ($50) and alteration is currently 
Commercial/Industrial Alterations/Amendments ($50).  Proposal divides alterations and amendments and 
combines alterations and accessory structures.  Maintains cost for alterations, but adds new fee for new square 
footage to principal structure to close loophole.  For amendment, see below.  We have also created new categories 
below for "alteration: demolition only" and "alteration: change of use only" to reduce fees for these types of 
straightforward permits.  For amendment, see below.] 

Non-Residential Permit Amendment 2 & 4    $21 6 

(Any change to the permit.) 
[Currently "commercial/industrial alteration/amendment" ($50).  Proposal divides alterations and amendments, 
reduces fee for amendment, but adds a new fee for new square footage to a principal structure close loophole (see 
footnote 6).   Applicants typically seek to amend their permits to make a minor change along the way, which is 
normally an easy review following a Site Plan amendment.  Less often, these non-residential amendments are used 
to correct a material change discovered at inspection and prior to the permit expiration; in which case the 
applicants would also pay the after-the-fact penalty (double).  Even with the new penalty charge,  the proposal 
lowers the cost to $41, below what it is now without a penalty ($50).] 
Mixed-Use Development  3       hybrid fee, see note #3 



 

 

 
 

[Fee schedule does not currently address building having commercial and residential units.  This addition will make 
clear which fees apply.] 
One-Time, One-Year Permit Renewal 4    $11 
[Existing classification.  Currently $40 for Residential and $50 for Commercial.  This type of permit requires very 
little processing time.] 
Alteration: Change of Use Only 5     $21 
[New classification.  Fee reduction.  Currently "residential alteration/amendment" ($40) and commercial 
alternation/amendment ($50). A change of use with no improvements is a straightforward review.] 
Alteration: Demolition/Removal Only    $16 
[New classification.  Fee reduction.  Currently "residential alteration/amendment" ($40) and "commercial 
alteration/amendment" ($50).  Demolition without replacement constitutes a change of use/alteration, but it is 
listed separately here to communicate that a permit is required.   Demolition can involve municipal utility shut offs 
and a change of address (elimination).  A permit also notifies the Assessor of a possible change in assessment.] 
Sign: Business/Subdivision/Directory    $5 
 [Nearly all VT communities we studied have higher sign fees than Milton.  The time required to review a sign is 
similar to an accessory structure.  The sign permit fee is the only fee established by the Zoning Regulations and 
therefore cannot be changed through this proposal.  We could, however, capture additional costs through the Sign 
Certificate of Compliance fees, but we have opted not to do that below.  We break down the sign categories, here, 
in an effort to communicate the kinds of signs that require a permit.  Staff is recommending, in the next 
amendment, that the permit fee be removed from the Bylaws so it can be amended to respond to changing 
circumstances like all the other fees; we would also like to evaluate alternatives to temporary signage permitting.] 
Sign: Advertising       $5 
Sign: Home Occupation      $5 
Sign: Special Business Event      $5 
Sign: Civic Event       $5 
 
1.  Square footage refers to the gross floor area defined here as the sum, in square feet, of the total horizontal areas of 
all floors of a principal structure or building and shall include all storage and utility areas, basements, attics, and 
mezzanines (finished & unfinished).   It shall not include square footage for decks, sheds, garages, accessory 
structures, or unenclosed and unroofed porches. 
2.  Does not apply to any application proposing additional units.  New residential/non-residential fee applies.   
3. Within a mixed-use building or site, applicable residential fees apply to units and gross floor area dedicated to 
residential use and applicable non-residential fees apply to units and gross floor area dedicated to non-residential 
use. 
4.  Amendments and renewals must be submitted PRIOR to the expiration of the permit.  Renewals are valid for one-
year from date of approval for identical project.  Amendments expire with the date of the original permit, but can be 
renewed.  If the Zoning Administrator determines that the scope of a residential amendment is a major, substantive 
change to the original proposal, s/he may require a new permit.   
5.  Applies to changes of use when no site or structural changes subject to permitting are proposed on the site. 
6.  Alterations and amendments that add new square footage to the existing or proposed principal building or 
structure shall be charged $0.10 per new square foot for residential permits, and $0.20 for non-residential permits.  
7.  Applies to all owned or leased units, including public warehousing units. 

 

IMPACT FEES 
 Impact fees are assessed for new dwelling units according to the Impact Fee Ordinance to fund capital 

improvements identified in and established by the Town's Capital Improvement Plan. 

 Impact fees are non-refundable. 



 

 

 
 

 Applicants may choose to pay the impact fee at the time the Zoning Permit is issued or at the time the Certificate 
of Compliance/Occupancy application is filed (Section 101), but no Certificate of Compliance/Occupancy shall be 
issued until full payment of the Impact Fee is paid (Section 107).   

 Accessory apartments are exempt from Impact Fees.  
Fee Type          Fee Amount  
Impact Fee          $2,651 per dwelling unit  
Reduced Impact Fee (elderly housing units & one-bedroom units)   $1,988 per dwelling unit 
 

CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE/OCCUPANCY & INSPECTIONS 
 Payment is due at the time of filing.   

 Where multiple permit types apply to a single application, the higher fee shall apply. 
 Payment is non-refundable. 

 Applications will not be considered complete or filed without payment of required fees.    
 [Payment is currently collected upon issuance/pick-up, leaving many unpaid unfiled certificates in the office for 
which memo's must be recorded and paid for.  In our survey of fee schedules, we were the only community doing 
post-approval fee collection.  Collection at filing will address a loss of recording revenue for certificates that are not 
picked up and paid within 30 days (required by24VSA4449) and denials, for which we currently charge nothing to 
cover the cost associated with a site inspection by the Zoning Administrator.] 

 When Impact Fees apply, no Certificate may be issued until a the full impact fee is paid. 
[Currently the ordinance requests that the applicant pay for the impact fee with the certificate of compliance 
application and then pay the certificate of compliance fee upon issuance/pick-up, this proposal integrates the two 
payments into one payment, which means one less trip and transaction for both parties to process.] 

 Applications submitted BEFORE the expiration of the associated Zoning Permit have a REDUCED FEE! 
[The reduced price creates an incentive to lower the number of certificates that are discovered prior to hurried real 
estate closings, and it enables us to better track which permits have resulted in actual construction.  It should also 
improve overall zoning compliance, since timely inspections certify compliance with the permit and means that we 
have to do less on the enforcement side to have applicants meet their legal obligations.  The full fee is approx. 60% 
more than the reduced fee.]  

 The Administrator must inspect and issue a statement of condition within 14 days of the compliance application 
filing.  Your signature grants the Administrator permission to enter your property to inspect the work.  

 Inspection of new residential & new non-residential will be done by appointment. 

 Applicants will be mailed a copy of their Certificate/decision. 
[Currently ask the applicant to return to the office to pick up and pay for issued certificates.  Mailing the certificates 
will save the applicants a second trip to the Municipal Building, reduce office traffic -- freeing up more 
uninterrupted time -- and get certificates to applicants faster.] 

 All Certificates are subject to a $10 recording fee.   

 Applications for after-the-fact use or occupancy (without a Certificate) or applications to correct a formal 
violation are subject to a surcharge penalty 4.  (See Penalties section below).  

[This is another fee commonly assessed by other communities to offset enforcement costs.  See Penalty section.] 

 
CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE/OCCUPANCY FEE CALCULATOR 
Certificate of Compliance Fee see schedule below + 

Certificate of Compliance Unit Fee (if applicable) #________units x $________=  

SUBTOTAL  = 

Violation Penalty (if applicable) multiply subtotal by 4 + 

After-the-Fact Penalty (if applicable) multiply subtotal by 2 + 



 

 

 
 

SUBTOTAL  = 

Expedited Review Surcharge(s) (if requested) see schedule above + 

Impact Fee (if applicable) $2,651 (full)/$1,988 (reduced) + 

Certificate of Compliance Recording Fee  + $10 

Landscape Surety Inspection Fee (if applicable) see schedule below + 

TOTAL DUE  =  

 
Inspection/Certificate Type      Reduced Fee  Full Fee  
[Currently, Certificates of Compliance are the same no matter the type of application ($25).  This schedule aims to 
recoup costs for the baseline transportation/labor cost as well as the amount of time the inspection will take by 
type, with some reductions for signs.] 
Uses Subject to Development Review    $36+2.50 per unit $58+2.50 per unit 
[This is a new, increased fee that accounts for the fact that uses subject to development review take longer to 
review the written Decision, plans and inspect.  The per unit fee helps link the time cost of inspection for bigger 
multi-unit projects.] 
New Residential 1       $31   $50  
[Increased from $25.] 
Other Residential 1 & 2       $26   $42  
[Increased from $25.] 
Business Identification /Subdivision/Directory Signs  $26   $42   
[Increased from $25.] 
Advertising Sign       $16   $26 
[Reduced from $25.] 
Home Occupation Signs      $11   $18 
[Reduced from $25.] 
Special Event Business Signs      $5   $8 
[Reduced from $25.] 
Civic Event Signs       $5   $8 
[Reduced from $25.] 
 
Landscaping Surety Inspection 3     $25  
Due upon request for inspection to enter or exit warrantee period. 
 [We are not currently charging for this service.] 
 
Failed Inspections 
Remember to check your permit to verify that you have completed the work as approved prior to submitting your 
Certificate application.  If the work doesn't match the permit, you must amend your permit; otherwise, the Certificate 
must be denied, and it shall be considered Notice of Voluntary Compliance.  A new Certificate application must be 
submitted to request a second inspection since uncertified development is a violation of the Zoning Permit and the 
regulations,  subject to enforcement if not cured. 
 Failed CO/CC/Landscape Inspection    applicable fee per inspection, no refund 
[This fee is common to VT communities to cover the cost of ZA time and transportation.  Creates incentive against 
applying for premature inspection by the Zoning Administrator, which happens more often than it should.] 
 
1. Does not apply to residential uses subject to Development Review. 
2. Applies to Accessory Structures, Alterations, and Amendments. 
3. Landscape inspections can only be done May 15 through October 15, when foliage is clearly visible. 



 

 

 
 

4. After-the-fact penalties shall not apply to corrective Certificates of Compliance/Occupancy applications for which 
an after-the-fact penalty has already been assessed for the associated Zoning Permit, unless the use or occupancy is 
in violation of the corrective permit. 

 

DEVELOPMENT REVIEW 
 To learn about the what, when, why how of development review, please visit 

http://miltonvt.org/government/boards/drb.html.   

 
DEVELOPMENT REVIEW FEES 
 Payment is due at the time of filing.   

 Applications will not be considered complete or filed without payment of required fees.    

 All fees are non-refundable.   

 Multiple applications that can be heard at the same hearing shall receive 50% off the less expensive 
application(s); this discount shall not apply to variances or appeals.     

[We currently don't charge anything.] 

 All development review applications are subject to a $10 recording fee and a $2 notice fee 1 per adjoining 
property owner and application party.    

 Certain applications require publication of a public warning in the newspaper (listed below). 
[Proposed warnings up $10 (currently $75) to account for increased advertising bills from the Milton Independent.] 

 Applications for after-the-fact development or applications to correct a formal violation are subject to a surcharge 
penalty (See Penalties section below). 
 

DEVELOPMENT REVIEW APPLICATION FEE CALCULATOR 
Base Application Fee   see schedule below  

Variable Fee Application (if applicable) total units & lots___ x fee ____= + 

Multiple Application Discount 
(If applicable.  Confirm with staff that the applications can be 
heard concurrently; discount does not apply to Variances or 
Appeals; multiply each LOWER cost application fee by 0.50.) 

  

Extra Application 1   total fee______x0.50 = + 

Extra Application 2 total fee______x0.50= + 

Extra Application 3 total fee______x0.50= + 

Pre-Application Credit (if applicable) subtract 100 from total - 

SUBTOTAL  = 

Pre-Application Discount (if applicable) 25% from subtotal above - 

SUBTOTAL  = 

Violation Penalty (if applicable) multiply subtotal by 4 + 

After-the-Fact Penalty (if applicable) multiply subtotal by 2 + 

SUBTOTAL  = 

Decision Recording Fee  + $10 

Warning Fee (if applicable, see below) add $85 + 

Adjoiners Notice 1 total no. _____multiplied by 2 = + 

Application Party Notice 
(Include all persons you wish to receive notice: Owners, 
Applicants, Engineers, Surveyors, Architects, Attorneys) 

 
total no. ____ multiplied by 2 = 

+ 

Legal Review Escrow (if applicable) $500 +  

http://miltonvt.org/government/boards/drb.html


 

 

 
 

TOTAL   =  

 
[Development review fees are currently far more affordable (per hour of review) than Zoning Permits or 
Certificates.  This schedule aims to recapture revenues for hours spent reviewing applications while also providing 
discount incentives to developers that work with staff to address non-discretionary issues early in the process.] 
 
Application     Application Fee   Warning 
Pre-Application Staff Evaluation and Consultation 2  $100 (credited to next app. & discount eligibility) 
[We see this as an opportunity to provide feedback and work out issues earlier in the process.  Many applications 
are submitted with no consultation with staff; this leads to long, labor-intense staff reports and conflict-prone 
hearings.  The prices below have been increased to offset this incentive, as well as offset the labor involved in 
processing applications that have been submitted without any feedback from staff.] 
Site Plan        $500     n/a 
[Same price as today ($300) with pre-application incentive.  New price accounts for 100 credit and 25% discount.  
Site plans can be as complex as a subdivision.]   
Site Plan Amendment      $235     n/a 
[Almost same price as today ($100) with pre-application incentive.] 
Administrative Site Plan Amendment 3   $75     n/a 
[Up from $50 due to staff time involved in writing and issuing a written decision.] 
Conditional Use       $150     85 
[No change.] 
Interim Zoning Conditional Use 5    $200     85 
[up from $150 due to review time.] 
Subdivision/PUD Sketch Plan    $235     n/a 
[Nearly same as today ($100) with pre-application incentive.] 
Minor (6 or fewer) Subdivision/Minor PUD Final 3  $500+50 per lot & unit  85 
[No change, not eligible for pre-application.] 
Major (7 or more) Subdivision/Major PUD Preliminary 3+4 $500     85 
[Listed preliminary and final separately and divided fee equally.  No change to total fee.]  
Major (7 or more) Subdivision /PUD Final 3   $500+50 per lot   85 
[Listed preliminary and final separately and divided fee equally.  No change to total fee.] 
Boundary Line Adjustment       $100+75 per lot involved  85 
[Increased from $75 per lot involved, but eligible for pre-app discount.]  

Minor Subdivision/PUD Amendments     $100+75 per lot, unit & phase amended 85 

[Changed from flat fee of 100 to match BLA, which is essentially what a BLA is.  Revenue gain without incentive.] 

Major Subdivision/ PUD Amendments   $175+75 per lot, unit & phase amended 85 

[Increased from 100 (to account for pre-application credit and discount) but added a new lot fee to address major 
(complex) amendments to many lots.] 
Administrative PUD Amendments 3    $100     85 
[Currently 50.] 
Variance 3         $150     85 
[No change.] 
Appeal to DRB 3       $150     85 
[No change.] 
Monument/Statue Approval 3    $100     n/a  
[Application defined in Regulations but never included in fee schedule.] 
Certificate of Approved Location 3    $100     85 



 

 

 
 

[Application defined in regulations but never included in free schedule.] 
 
Subdivision Survey Plat Recording Fee   $15 
Due at the time of final plat submission for DRB signature.  Fee established by Clerk. 
[No change.]   
Plat Recording 90-Day Deadline Extension   $25 
Due upon written request. 
[New fee, requires that we draft a Memo and update the file.] 
Independent Technical Review Escrow   cost per hour billed from $500 escrow 
Due upon request by the Appropriate Municipal Panel; unused balance reimbursed. 
[New fee, just in case the DRB ever wants to have an independent third opinion i.e. traffic study.] 
Legal Review Escrow      cost per hour billed from $500 escrow 
Due at the time of final review application filing with draft legal instruments; unused balance reimbursed. 
[Change to request this with the application (instead of post-decision) to identify legal issues earlier and protect the 
town and applicant from legal risk.] 
Revised Final Plan/Plat Staff Review    first review free, each additional review $50  
        base fee + $30 per hour for ea. additional hour 
        over 1. 
Base fee ue upon revised plan submission, applicant will be billed for hourly rate, due with Plat submission or 
Zoning Permit application. 
[New fee to encourage attentive revisions responsive to the DRB Decision upon first submission.  We spend more 
time than we should at this stage because Decision closeout becomes a game to see what the Planner's will let get 
through, or if they'll catch it.  This will reduce time-consuming back and forth post-decision.] 
 

1. Adjoiners are defined by the Planning Act as owners of properties which would be contiguous to the property 
subject to development but for the interposition of a highway or other public right-of-way. 
2.  Staff will review a complete subdivision sketch/PUD sketch, subdivision/PUD amendment, boundary line 
adjustment, site plan, and site plan amendment applications for evaluation and present a written, non-binding report 
as soon as possible (and within 15 business days of submission) to address potential regulatory issues.  The cost of 
review will be credited to the next application, and the next application will be eligible for a 25% application fee 
discount according to the fee calculation table above if ALL identified, non-discretionary regulatory issues are 
addressed in the application to the satisfaction of staff. 

3. Not eligible for pre-application evaluation or discount. 
4. If the DRB determines at sketch that preliminary and final review can be reviewed concurrently at sketch, both 
fees shall be assessed, with a single warning. 
5. Interim Zoning applications must be submitted with all associated development review applications to which the 
use is subject. 

 

FEE PENALTIES FOR AFTER-THE-FACT APPLICATIONS/VIOLATIONS 
After-the-fact means the submission of  any application required in this schedule after construction, demolition, 
subdivision, occupation or commencement of use prior to Town approval.   
[These fees offset the costs of our labor/time-intense enforcement process.  This is a common charge by Vermont 
communities to recoup enforcement costs involved in correcting a violation without involving the courts.  It also 
creates a clear incentive to develop with a permit.  The reason for the high violation fee is because if we've gone so 
far as to record a violation in the Land Records according to the Board's enforcement policy, then the applicant has 
generally not been cooperative and a lot of staff time has been spent working with the applicant.  We can use this 
as a communication tool to encourage voluntary compliance.] 



 

 

 
 

 After-the-Fact Applications are subject to TWO (2) times the normal fee for each subsequent 
development review, zoning permit, and certificates of compliance/occupancy application needed to 
correct the non-compliance. 

 After-the-fact applications for properties for which a formal Zoning Violation has been recorded in the 
land records are subject to FOUR (4) times the normal fee for each and every subsequent development 
review, zoning permit, and certificate of compliance/occupancy application to correct the violation. 

 

ZONING/SUBDIVISION VIOLATIONS 
[Listed here as communication tool only.] 
Enforcement is conducted according to the Town's Zoning Enforcement Policy and applicable ordinances.  Penalty 
fee established by the Ordinance. 
Zoning        $200 per offense, per day 
Subdivision       $40 per offense, per day 
 

LITTER VIOLATIONS 
[Listed here as communication tool only.] 
Litter Enforcement is conducted according to the Town's Litter Ordinance through a civil ticketing process. Penalty 
fee established by the Ordinance. 
Litter        $500 per day, or waiver fee 

 
RESEARCH & WRITTEN JURISDICTIONAL OPINIONS 
[New fees to capture revenue for services provided.  Other communities offer this service.] 

 File research and jurisdictional opinions are provided at staff's discretion.  

 Payment for one hour is due in advance of services rendered. Payment for hours over one shall be paid prior to 
issuance of the report.   

 DISCLAIMER:  The Town's staff does not provide legal advice, conduct title searches, survey land, or resolve 
boundary disputes. 

File Research and/or Written Staff Opinion   $50 base fee +30 for ea. additional hour over 1 
 

PUBLIC RECORDS 
[Currently charging 0.05 for one-sided 8.5x11 and 0.09 for two-sided.  Clerk charges $1 per page.  Copying involves 
labor time.  This identifies & helps offset costs associated with public record requests.] 
Photocopies of Records (black & white)   one courtesy copy, then $1 per 8.5x11 of area 
Photocopies of Records (color)    $2.50 per 8.5x11" of area 
Digital PDF Scans of Records     $1 per 8.5x11" of area 
Plotter Maps       $15 per 3' x 4' map 
Regulations/Ordinances (under 15 pages)   $5  (free online) 
Regulations/Ordinance (over 15 pages)   $10  (free online) 
Comprehensive Plan (black & white)    $15  (free online) 
Comprehensive Plan (color)     $30 (free online) 
Postage/Shipping      at cost  (must be paid in advance; contact us for fee) 

 
MILTON HIGHWAY ACCESS, WATER & WASTEWATER PERMITS 
Highway access (new driveways/curb cuts), water and sewer connections/change of use require permits from the 
Town's Department of Public Works. Please call the Department at (802)893-6030 for assistance. 



 

 

 
 

 

STATE PERMITS 
State law requires that you contact the necessary State agencies and obtain any required State permits before 
construction may commence.  Contact the local Permit Specialist at (802)879-5676 for assistance. 

 
FEE REDUCTION OR WAIVER: 
Fees established by this schedule may be reduced or waived due to extenuating circumstances.  An 
applicant requesting such a reduction or wavier shall provide the request in writing to the Director of 
Planning and Economic Development.  The Director shall review such requests and provide a written 
recommendation for consideration and final determination by the Selectboard at the next available 
meeting, as determined by the Town Manager.  The Director may also initiate such a request. 

 
ADOPTION/AMENDMENT: 
Pursuant to Vermont Statutes Annotated, Title 24, Chapter 117, Subchapter 9, Section 4440, this schedule is 
established by Resolution of the Selectboard, effective [insert date of adoption].  Non-substantive revisions 
that do not impact a Planning & Zoning fee classification or amount may be made to this schedule 
administratively without Selectboard approval. 
  
 



TOWN OF MILTON  
Planning & Economic Development Department  
Visit:  43 Bombardier Road  Milton, Vermont 05468-3205 
Call:  (802) 893-1186 
E-mail: ktreanor@town.milton.vt.us 
Surf:  miltonvt.org/planning 
Hours: Monday - Friday 8 AM to 5 PM, Tuesday 9 AM to 5 PM (except holidays)  

Payment: cash, check, credit/debit card (3% surcharge), e-check ($1.50 surcharge) 

 

FEE SCHEDULE 

 
We're here to help you develop your property according to Milton's Town Plan and regulations. 

If you have questions, or need help completing any form, please contact us! 
 

HOW DO I OPEN AND CLOSE A ZONING PERMIT? 
1. Submit a complete application and pay fee. 
2. Compliant permits are approved; non-compliant permits must be denied with an explanation. 
3. The Town mails you the permit and records a notice in the Land Records. 
4. Notify your neighbors by posting the red "P" poster where it will be visible from the nearest public 

right-of-way.  The permit takes effect after the 15-day appeal period has expired; permit decisions can 
be appealed. 

5. You can now begin your project!  
6. If you change your project plans, you must amend the permit to update the plans. 
7. If you need more than one year to complete the project, you must renew the permit to keep it valid. 
8. When the project is finished, you must submit a Certificate of Compliance/Occupancy application to 

close your permit; applications submitted prior to the expiration of the Zoning Permit have a reduced 
fee. 

9. Compliant projects are inspected and approved; non-compliant projects must be denied with an 
explanation. 

10. The Town mails you the Certificate and records a notice in the Town's Land Records. 
 
EXPEDITED SERVICES 

 Expedited review is available upon request and when possible.   

 Please indicate on the application form that you are requesting this service. 

 The surcharge payment is due at the time of filing and will be refunded if the deadline is not met. 
Expedited Zoning Permit Service (5-Business Days 1)  $75 surcharge added to total 
Expedited Certificate of Compliance (3- Business Days 1)  $200 surcharge added to total   
Expedited Certificate of Compliance (5- Business Days 1)  $75 surcharge added to total   
 
1.  Business days are the days the Town is open for business and will be calculated on a 24-hour basis.  Example:  If 
the application is filed and paid on Friday at 3:00 p.m., a 3-day expedited permit will be issued by Wednesday at 3:00 
p.m. 

 
ZONING PERMITS           
 Payment is due at the time of filing.   

 Where multiple permit types apply to a single application, the higher fee shall apply. 

 Applications will not be considered complete or filed without payment of required fees.    

 All Zoning Permits are subject to a $10 recording fee. 



 

 

 
 

 Applications withdrawn prior to issuance of the permit and applications deemed not to require a permit will 
receive a full refund. 

 The Zoning Administrator must act on the application within 30 days of your permit application filing. 

 Applicants will be mailed a copy of the permit/decision. 

 Denied applications are eligible for credit for a corrective permit if submitted within 30 days of the denial; the 
credit does not apply to the $10 recording fee.   

 Applications for after-the-fact development or applications to correct a formal violation are subject to a surcharge 
penalty (See Penalties section below).   

 All Zoning Permits require a Certificate of Occupancy/Compliance prior to use or occupancy. 
 
ZONING PERMIT FEE CALCULATOR 

Zoning Permit Application Fee see schedule below + 

Zoning Permit Square Footage Fee 1 (if applicable) #________sq. ft.  x $________= + 

Zoning Permit Unit Fee (if applicable) #________units x $________= + 

SUBTOTAL  = 

Violation Penalty (if applicable) multiply subtotal by 4 + 

After-the-Fact Penalty (if applicable) multiply subtotal by 2 + 

SUBTOTAL  = 

Expedited Review Surcharge(s) (if requested) see schedule above + 

Zoning Permit Recording Fee  + $10 

TOTAL DUE  = 

 
Permit Type        Permit Fee    
New Residential Dwelling Unit     $250 per unit +0.10 per sq. ft. 1 

Residential Alteration/Accessory Structure 2& 6   $41 
Residential Permit Amendment 2,  4 &  6    $16   
New Non-Residential      $250 per unit 7 +0.20 per sq. ft. 1 

Non-Residential Alteration/Accessory Structure 2 & 6   $51 
Non-Residential Permit Amendment 2 & 4    $21 6 

Mixed-Use Development  3       hybrid fee, see note #3 
One-Time, One-Year Permit Renewal 4    $11 
Alteration: Change of Use Only 5     $21 
Alteration: Demolition/Removal Only    $16 
Sign: Business/Subdivision/Directory    $5 
Sign: Advertising       $5 
Sign: Home Occupation      $5 
Sign: Special Business Event      $5 
Sign: Civic Event       $5 
 
1.  Square footage refers to the gross floor area defined here as the sum, in square feet, of the total horizontal areas of 
all floors of a principal structure or building and shall include all storage and utility areas, basements, attics, and 
mezzanines (finished & unfinished).   It shall not include square footage for decks, sheds, garages, accessory 
structures, or unenclosed and unroofed porches. 
2.  Does not apply to any application proposing additional units.  New residential/non-residential fee applies.   
3. Within a mixed-use building or site, applicable residential fees apply to units and gross floor area dedicated to 
residential use and applicable non-residential fees apply to units and gross floor area dedicated to non-residential 
use. 



 

 

 
 

4.  Amendments and renewals must be submitted PRIOR to the expiration of the permit.  Renewals are valid for one-
year from date of approval for identical project.  Amendments expire with the date of the original permit, but can be 
renewed.  If the Zoning Administrator determines that the scope of a residential amendment is a major, substantive 
change to the original proposal, s/he may require a new permit.   
5.  Applies to changes of use when no site or structural changes subject to permitting are proposed on the site. 
6.  Alterations and amendments that add new square footage to the existing or proposed principal building or 
structure shall be charged $0.10 per new square foot for residential permits, and $0.20 for non-residential permits.  
7.  Applies to all owned or leased units, including public warehousing units. 

 
IMPACT FEES 

 Impact fees are assessed for new dwelling units according to the Impact Fee Ordinance to fund capital 
improvements identified in and established by the Town's Capital Improvement Plan. 

 Impact fees are non-refundable. 

 Applicants may choose to pay the impact fee at the time the Zoning Permit is issued or at the time the Certificate 
of Compliance/Occupancy application is filed (Section 101), but no Certificate of Compliance/Occupancy shall be 
issued until full payment of the Impact Fee is paid (Section 107).   

 Accessory apartments are exempt from Impact Fees.  
Fee Type          Fee Amount  
Impact Fee          $2,651 per dwelling unit  
Reduced Impact Fee (elderly housing units & one-bedroom units)   $1,988 per dwelling unit 
 
CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE/OCCUPANCY & INSPECTIONS 

 Payment is due at the time of filing.   

 Where multiple permit types apply to a single application, the higher fee shall apply. 

 Payment is non-refundable. 

 Applications will not be considered complete or filed without payment of required fees.    

 When Impact Fees apply, no Certificate may be issued until a the full impact fee is paid. 

 Applications submitted BEFORE the expiration of the associated Zoning Permit have a REDUCED FEE! 

 The Administrator must inspect and issue a statement of condition within 14 days of the compliance application 
filing.  Your signature grants the Administrator permission to enter your property to inspect the work.  

 Inspection of new residential & new non-residential will be done by appointment. 

 Applicants will be mailed a copy of their Certificate/decision. 

 All Certificates are subject to a $10 recording fee.   

 Applications for after-the-fact use or occupancy (without a Certificate) or applications to correct a formal 
violation are subject to a surcharge penalty 4.  (See Penalties section below).  

 
CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE/OCCUPANCY FEE CALCULATOR 

Certificate of Compliance Fee see schedule below + 

Certificate of Compliance Unit Fee (if applicable) #________units x $________=  

SUBTOTAL  = 

Violation Penalty (if applicable) multiply subtotal by 4 + 

After-the-Fact Penalty (if applicable) multiply subtotal by 2 + 

SUBTOTAL  = 

Expedited Review Surcharge(s) (if requested) see schedule above + 

Impact Fee (if applicable) $2,651 (full)/$1,988 (reduced) + 

Certificate of Compliance Recording Fee  + $10 

Landscape Surety Inspection Fee (if applicable) see schedule below + 



 

 

 
 

TOTAL DUE  =  

 
Inspection/Certificate Type      Reduced Fee  Full Fee  
Uses Subject to Development Review    $36+2.50 per unit $58+2.50 per unit 
New Residential 1       $31   $50  
Other Residential 1 & 2       $26   $42  
Business Identification /Subdivision/Directory Signs  $26   $42   
Advertising Sign       $16   $26 
Home Occupation Signs      $11   $18 
Special Event Business Signs      $5   $8 
Civic Event Signs       $5   $8 
Landscaping Surety Inspection 3     $25  
Due upon request for inspection to enter or exit warrantee period. 
 
Failed Inspections 
Remember to check your permit to verify that you have completed the work as approved prior to submitting your 
Certificate application.  If the work doesn't match the permit, you must amend your permit; otherwise, the Certificate 
must be denied, and it shall be considered Notice of Voluntary Compliance.  A new Certificate application must be 
submitted to request a second inspection since uncertified development is a violation of the Zoning Permit and the 
regulations,  subject to enforcement if not cured. 
 Failed CO/CC/Landscape Inspection    applicable fee per inspection, no refund 
 
1. Does not apply to residential uses subject to Development Review. 
2. Applies to Accessory Structures, Alterations, and Amendments. 
3. Landscape inspections can only be done May 15 through October 15, when foliage is clearly visible. 
4. After-the-fact penalties shall not apply to corrective Certificates of Compliance/Occupancy applications for which 
an after-the-fact penalty has already been assessed for the associated Zoning Permit, unless the use or occupancy is 
in violation of the corrective permit. 

 
HOW DO I GET DEVELOPMENT REVIEW APPROVAL? 

 To learn about the what, when, why how of development review, please visit 
http://miltonvt.org/government/boards/drb.html.   

 
DEVELOPMENT REVIEW FEES 
 Payment is due at the time of filing.   

 Applications will not be considered complete or filed without payment of required fees.    

 All fees are non-refundable.   

 Multiple applications that can be heard at the same hearing shall receive 50% off the less expensive 
application(s); this discount shall not apply to variances or appeals.     

 All development review applications are subject to a $10 recording fee and a $2 notice fee 1 per adjoining 
property owner and application party.    

 Certain applications require publication of a public warning in the newspaper (listed below). 

 Applications for after-the-fact development or applications to correct a formal violation are subject to a surcharge 
penalty (See Penalties section below). 
 

DEVELOPMENT REVIEW APPLICATION FEE CALCULATOR 

Base Application Fee   see schedule below  

Variable Fee Application (if applicable) total units & lots___ x fee ____= + 

http://miltonvt.org/government/boards/drb.html


 

 

 
 

Multiple Application Discount 
(If applicable.  Confirm with staff that the applications 
can be heard concurrently; discount does not apply to 
Variances or Appeals; multiply each LOWER cost 
application fee by 0.50.) 

  

Extra Application 1   total fee______x0.50 = + 

Extra Application 2 total fee______x0.50= + 

Extra Application 3 total fee______x0.50= + 

Pre-Application Credit (if applicable) subtract 100 from total - 

SUBTOTAL  = 

Pre-Application Discount (if applicable) 25% from subtotal above - 

SUBTOTAL  = 

Violation Penalty (if applicable) multiply subtotal by 4 + 

After-the-Fact Penalty (if applicable) multiply subtotal by 2 + 

SUBTOTAL  = 

Decision Recording Fee  + $10 

Warning Fee (if applicable, see below) add $85 + 

Adjoiners Notice 1 total no. _____multiplied by 2 = + 

Application Party Notice 
(Include all persons you wish to receive notice: 
Owners, Applicants, Engineers, Surveyors, 
Architects, Attorneys) 

 
total no. ____ multiplied by 2 = 

+ 

Legal Review Escrow (if applicable) $500 +  

TOTAL   =  

 
Application     Application Fee   Warning 
Pre-Application Staff Evaluation and Consultation 2  $100 (credited to next app. & discount eligibility) 
Site Plan        $500     n/a 
Site Plan Amendment      $235     n/a 
Administrative Site Plan Amendment 3   $75     n/a 
Conditional Use       $150     85 
Interim Zoning Conditional Use 5    $200     85 
Subdivision/PUD Sketch Plan    $235     n/a 
Minor (6 or fewer) Subdivision/Minor PUD Final 3  $500+50 per lot & unit  85 
Major (7 or more) Subdivision/Major PUD Preliminary 3+4 $500     85 
Major (7 or more) Subdivision /PUD Final 3   $500+50 per lot   85 
Boundary Line Adjustment       $100+75 per lot involved  85 
Minor Subdivision/PUD Amendments     $100+75 per lot, unit & phase amended  85 
Major Subdivision/ PUD Amendments   $175+75 per lot, unit & phase amended  85 
Administrative PUD Amendments 3    $100     85 
Variance 3         $150     85 
Appeal to DRB 3       $150     85 
Monument/Statue Approval 3    $100     n/a  
Certificate of Approved Location 3    $100     85 
 
Other Development Review Fees 



 

 

 
 

Subdivision Survey Plat Recording Fee   $15 
Due at the time of final plat submission for DRB signature.  Fee established by Clerk.   
Plat Recording 90-Day Deadline Extension   $25 
Due upon written request. 
Independent Technical Review Escrow   cost per hour billed from $500 escrow 
Due upon request by the Appropriate Municipal Panel; unused balance reimbursed. 
Legal Review Escrow      cost per hour billed from $500 escrow 
Due at the time of final review application filing with draft legal instruments; unused balance reimbursed. 
Revised Final Plan/Plat Staff Review    first review free, each additional review $50  
        base fee + $30 per hour for ea. additional hour 
        over 1. 
Base fee due upon revised plan submission, applicant will be billed for hourly rate, due with Plat submission or 
Zoning Permit application. 
 

1. Adjoiners are defined by the Planning Act as owners of properties which would be contiguous to the property 
subject to development but for the interposition of a highway or other public right-of-way. 
2.  Staff will review a complete subdivision sketch/PUD sketch, subdivision/PUD amendment, boundary line 
adjustment, site plan, and site plan amendment applications for evaluation and present a written, non-binding report 
as soon as possible (and within 15 business days of submission) to address potential regulatory issues.  The cost of 
review will be credited to the next application, and the next application will be eligible for a 25% application fee 
discount according to the fee calculation table above if ALL identified, non-discretionary regulatory issues are 
addressed in the application to the satisfaction of staff. 

3. Not eligible for pre-application evaluation or discount. 
4. If the DRB determines at sketch that preliminary and final review can be reviewed concurrently at sketch, both 
fees shall be assessed, with a single warning. 
5. Interim Zoning applications must be submitted with all associated development review applications to which the 
use is subject. 

 
PENALTIES FOR AFTER-THE-FACT APPLICATIONS/VIOLATIONS 
After-the-fact means the submission of  any application required in this schedule after construction, demolition, 
subdivision, occupation or commencement of use prior to Town approval.   

 After-the-Fact Applications are subject to TWO (2) times the normal fee for each subsequent 
development review, zoning permit, and certificates of compliance/occupancy application needed to 
correct the non-compliance. 

 After-the-fact applications for properties for which a formal Zoning Violation has been recorded in the 
land records are subject to FOUR (4) times the normal fee for each and every subsequent development 
review, zoning permit, and certificate of compliance/occupancy application to correct the violation. 

 
ZONING/SUBDIVISION VIOLATIONS 
Enforcement is conducted according to the Town's Zoning Enforcement Policy and applicable ordinances.  Penalty 
fee established by the Ordinance. 
Zoning        $200 per offense, per day 
Subdivision       $40 per offense, per day 
 
LITTER VIOLATIONS 
Litter Enforcement is conducted according to the Town's Litter Ordinance through a civil ticketing process. Penalty 
fee established by the Ordinance. 
Litter        $500 per day, or waiver fee 
 



 

 

 
 

RESEARCH & WRITTEN JURISDICTIONAL OPINIONS 

 File research and jurisdictional opinions are provided at staff's discretion.  

 Payment for one hour is due in advance of services rendered. Payment for hours over one shall be paid prior to 
issuance of the report.   

 DISCLAIMER:  The Town's staff does not provide legal advice, conduct title searches, survey land, or resolve 
boundary disputes. 

File Research and/or Written Staff Opinion   $50 base fee +30 for ea. additional hour over 1 
 
PUBLIC RECORDS 
Photocopies of Records (black & white)   one courtesy copy, then $1 per 8.5x11 of area 
Photocopies of Records (color)    $2.50 per 8.5x11" of area 
Digital PDF Scans of Records     $1 per 8.5x11" of area 
Plotter Maps       $15 per 3' x 4' map 
Regulations/Ordinances (under 15 pages)   $5  (free online) 
Regulations/Ordinance (over 15 pages)   $10  (free online) 
Comprehensive Plan (black & white)    $15  (free online) 
Comprehensive Plan (color)     $30 (free online) 
Postage/Shipping      at cost  (must be paid in advance; contact us for fee) 
 
MILTON HIGHWAY ACCESS, WATER & WASTEWATER PERMITS 
Highway access (new driveways/curb cuts), water and sewer connections/change of use require permits from the 
Town's Department of Public Works. Please call the Department at (802)893-6030 for assistance. 
 
STATE PERMITS 
State law requires that you contact the necessary State agencies and obtain any required State permits before 
construction may commence.  Contact the local Permit Specialist at (802)879-5676 for assistance. 
 
FEE REDUCTION OR WAIVER: 
Fees established by this schedule may be reduced or waived due to extenuating circumstances.  An 
applicant requesting such a reduction or wavier shall provide the request in writing to the Director of 
Planning and Economic Development.  The Director shall review such requests and provide a written 
recommendation for consideration and final determination by the Selectboard at the next available 
meeting, as determined by the Town Manager.  The Director may also initiate such a request. 
 
ADOPTION/AMENDMENT: 
Pursuant to Vermont Statutes Annotated, Title 24, Chapter 117, Subchapter 9, Section 4440, this schedule is 
established by Resolution of the Selectboard, effective [insert date of adoption].  Non-substantive revisions 
that do not impact a Planning & Zoning fee classification or amount may be made to this schedule 
administratively without Selectboard approval. 
  
 



RESOLUTION 
Town of Milton Selectboard  

 

 
 

Planning & Zoning Fee Schedule Amendment  
 
WHEREAS, Title 24 Chapter 117, Subchapter 9  § 4440 states:   
 

(b) The legislative body may prescribe reasonable fees to be charged with respect to the 
administration of bylaws and for the administration of development review. These fees may 
include the cost of posting and publishing notices and holding public hearings and the cost of 
conducting periodic inspections during the installation of public improvements. These fees may 
be required to be payable by the applicant upon submission of the application or prior to 
issuance of permits or certificates of occupancy. 
(c) The legislative body may set reasonable fees for filing of notices of appeal and for other acts as 
it deems proper, the payment of which shall be a condition to the validity of the filing or act 
under this chapter. 
(d) The legislative body may establish procedures and standards for requiring an applicant to 
pay for reasonable costs of an independent technical review of the application.  

 
WHEREAS, the Planning and Economic Development Department maintains a current Fee 
Schedule of all Planning & Zoning fees, as approved by the Selectboard. 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning and Economic Development Department staff has prepared 
amendments to the Fee Schedule with advisory review by the Development Review Board and 
Planning Commission; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Town of Milton Selectboard, by authority granted in 
the Planning Act, hereby adopts the proposed amendments to the Planning & Zoning Fee 
Schedule. 
 
Dated at Milton, Vermont this ______ day of _________, 2016 
 
SELECTBOARD 

 

_______________________________ _________________________________ 
Darren Adams, Chairperson John Cushing 

 
 

_______________________________ _________________________________ 
John Bartlett,  Clerk Kenneth Nolan 

 
Filed with the Milton Town Clerk’s Office this ______ day of _______, 2016 
 

Attest: ___________________________________________, Town Clerk 



Existing Fee Classification Proposed Fee Classification Existing Fee Discount Fee (proposed) Full Fee (proposed) Increase/Decrease

none 5-day expedited ZP none n/a 75 surcharge new,75

none 3-day expedited CO none n/a 200 surcharge new,200

none 5-day expedited CO none n/a 75 surcharge new, 75

New Residential Building New Residential Dwelling Unit 300 base fee+.04 /SF n/a 250 per new DU+ .10/SF -50,+.06

New Elderly Housing Complex New Residential Dwelling Unit 150/DU+.04/SF n/a 250 per new DU+ .10/SF 100,+.06

New Multi-family Structure New Residential Dwelling Unit 200/DU+.04/SF n/a 250 per new DU+ .10/SF 50,+.06

Residential Accessory Structure Residential Alteration/Accessory Structure 40 n/a 41 1

Residential Alteration/Amendment Residential Permit Amendment 40 n/a 16 -24

Residential Alteration/Amendment Alteration:Demolition Only 40 n/a 16 -24

Residential Alteration/Amendment Alteration: Change of Use Only 40 n/a 21 19

One Time Residential Renewal One-Time, One Year Permit Renewal 40 n/a 11 29

New Commercial/Industrial Structure New Non-Residential 500/unit+.10/SF n/a 250/unit+.20/SF -250,+.10

Commercial/Industrial Accessory Structure Non-Residential Alteration/Accessory Structure 50 n/a 51 1

Commercial/Industrial Alterations/Amendments Alteration:Demolition Only 50 n/a 16 -34

Commercial/Industrial Alterations/Amendments Alteration: Change of Use Only 50 n/a 21 -29

Commercial/Industrial Alterations/Amendments Non-Residential Permit Amendment 50 n/a 51 1

One Time Commercial/Industrial Renewal One-Time, One Year Permit Renewal 50 n/a 21 -29

none Mixed-Use Development none n/a hybrid new, hybrid

Zoning Permit: Sign Sign:Business/Subdivision/Directory 5 n/a 5 0

Zoning Permit: Sign Sign: Advertising 5 n/a 5 0

Zoning Permit: Sign Sign: Temporary Special Business Event 5 n/a 5 0

Zoning Permit: Sign Sign: Home Occupation 5 n/a 5 0

Zoning Permit: Sign Sign: Civic Event 5 n/a 5 0

Certificate of Occupancy/Compliance CO/CC: Uses Subject to Development Review 25 36+2.50 per unit 58+2.50 per unit 11,+2.5/unit - 33+2.5 per unit

Certificate of Occupancy/Compliance CO/CC: New Residential 25 31 50 6/19

Certificate of Occupancy/Compliance CO/CC: Other Residential 25 26 42 1/17

Certificate of Occupancy/Compliance CO/CC: Business Identification/Subdivision/Directory Signs25 26 42 1/17

Certificate of Occupancy/Compliance CO/CC: Advertising Signs 25 16 26 -9/1

Certificate of Occupancy/Compliance CO/CC: Home Occupation Signs 25 11 18 -14/-7

Certificate of Occupancy/Compliance CO/CC: Special Event Business Signs 25 5 8 -20/-17

Certificate of Occupancy/Compliance CO/CC: Civic Event Signs 25 5 8 -20/-17

none Landscaping Surety Inspection none n/a 25 new, 25

none Failed Inspection none n/a fee non-rendable new, at cost

none Pre-application Staff Evaluation & Consultation none n/a 100 (credited to next phase & discount eligibility)new, 100

Site Plan Site Plan 300 300 500 0/200

Site Plan Amendment Site Plan Amendment 100 101.25 235 1.25/135

Administrative Site Plan Amendment Administrative Site Plan Amendment 50 n/a 75 25

Conditional use Conditional Use 150 n/a 150 0

Interim Zoning Conditional Use Interim Zoning Conditional Use 150 n/a 150 0

Sketch Plan for Subdivisions and PUDs Subdivision/PUD Sketch Plan 100 (can be credited to next phase) 101.25 235 101.25/235

Minor Subdivision/PUD-Residential (6-units) Minor Subdivision/PUD Final 500+50/unit or lot n/a 500+50/lot&unit 100 (no longer credit eligible)

Major Subdivision/PUD-Residential (7+units) Major Subdivision/PUD Preliminary 0 n/a 500 500

Major Subdivision/PUD-Residential (7+units) Major Subdivision/PUD Final 1,000+50 per unit or lot n/a 500+50/lot&unit -500

Boundary Line Adjustment Boundary Line Adjustment 75 per lot variable (base & lot discount)100+75/lot involved 100

Subdivision PUD/Amendments Minor Subdivision/PUD Amendment 100 variable (base & lot discount)100+75/lot,unit&phase amended 75/lot

Subdivision PUD Amendments Major Subdivision/PUD Amendment 100 variable (base & lot discount)175+75/lot,unit&phase amended 75/lot



Administrative PUD Amendments Administrative PUD Amendment 50 n/a 100 50

Variance Variance 150 n/a 150 0

Appeal of Zoning Administrator's Decision Zoning Administrator Decision Appeal 150 n/a 150 0

none Monument/Statue Approval none n/a 100 new, 100

none Certificate of Approved Location none n/a 100 new, 100

Warning Fee (Newspaper Publication) Warning Fee (Newspaper Publication) 75 n/a 85 10

none Plat Recording 90-day Deadline Extension none n/a 25 new, 25

none Independent Technical Review Escrow none n/a 500 escrow (upon request) new, 500

Escrow Account:  Legal Review Fees Legal Review Escrow 500 n/a 500 escrow 0

none Revised Final Plan/Plat Staff Review none n/a first free, then 50 base +30/hr over 1new,50+30hr.

none After-the Fact Applications none n/a 2 times fee new, 2X

none After-the Fact Applications w/ Violation none n/a 4 times fee new, 4X

none File Research and/or Written Staff Opinion none n/a 50 base +30/hr over 1 new, 50+30hr.

Copies of Official Documents Photocopies of Records (black and white) .05 per page/.09 double-sided n/a one free, then 1 per 8.5x11 0.89

none Photocopies of Records (color) none n/a 2.50 per 8.5x11 new, 2.50

none Digital PDF Scans of Records none n/a 1 per 8.5x11 new, 1

none Plotter Maps 5 n/a 15 per 3x4 10

Copies of Official Documents Regulations and Ordinances (under 15 pages) .05 per page/.09 double-sided n/a 5 new, 5

Copies of Official Documents Regulations and Ordinances (over 15 pages) .05 per page/.09 double-sided n/a 10 new, 100

Copies of Official Documents Comprehensive Plan (black and white) .05 per page/.09 double-sided n/a 15 new, 100

Copies of Official Documents Comprehensive Plan (color) .05 per page/.09 double-sided n/a 30 new, 30

none Postage/Shipping none n/a at cost new, at cost



Town/City

New owner-occupied Single 

Family Home; $200,000 ECC; 

2,000 square feet; 3 

bedrooms:  

New Residential Duplex 

(not owner occupied); 

$250,000 ECC; 1,500 square 

feet per unit:  

New Industrial space; 

$500,000 ECC; 10,000 square 

feet  

New Retail Space; $125,000 

ECC; 2,000 square feet

Residential Deck; $5,000 

ECC; 400 square feet

After-the-Fact Permits 

(work already commenced 

or completed)

Certificate of Compliance 

(residential)

Certificate of Compliance 

(commercial)

Barre City

$200 base buiding permit 

(plus other fees: electrical, 

alarm, etc.) + $20 ZP = $220 

plus recording (assumes 2 

stories same size, fee is based 

on footprint)

$375 base buiding permit 

(plus other fees: electrical, 

alarm, etc.) + $20 ZP = $395 

plus recording (assumes 2 

stories same size, fee is 

based on footprint)

$2500 base building permit 

fee (plus building fees:  

electrical, alarm, etc.) + $400 

ZP = $2,900.00 plus recording

$500 base building permit fee 

(plus building fees:  electrical, 

alarm, etc.) + $200 ZP = 

$700.00 plus recording

$80 building permit + $20 ZP 

= $100 + recording
Double the normal fees.  

appears to be included, 

but 2nd and subsequent 

inspections (due to failed 

CO) are $200

appears to be included, but 

2nd and subsequent 

inspections (due to failed 

CO) are $200

Bennington $340.00 $1,200.00 $2,800.00 $740.00 $45.00 Double the normal fees.  $65.00 $75.00 

Brattleboro $450.00 $650.00 $4,170.00 $970.00 $66.00 Double the normal fees.  
Not addressed on fee 

schedule
same

Burlington $1,490 $1,735.00 $3,360.00 $972.50 $160.00 

N/A for permits.  After the 

fact CO's vary from $150-

$450 and $150-$1,500 if 

DRB was involved.

$30 + 10% of all zoning & 

conditional use permit 

application fees

$30 + 10% of all zoning & 

conditional use permit 

application fees

Colchester $955.00 $1,395.00 $5,675 $1,195.00 $75.00 Double the normal fees.  

Appears to be included, 

but a failed inspection is 

$40 and CO requested 2 

years after permit 

issuance is $100.00

Appears to be included, but 

a failed inspection is $40 

and CO requested 2 years 

after permit issuance is 

$100.00

Essex Jct. $210.00 $410.00 $1,010.00 $210.00 $35.00 Double the normal fees.  $35.00? $35.00 

Georgia $200.00 $350.00 $500.00 $300.00 $70.00 twice underlying fee included in permit fee included in permit fee

Hartford $265.00 $465.00 $865.00 $465.00 $70.00 none

Milton Existing $380.00 $420.00 $1,500.00 $700.00 $40.00 0 $25.00 25

Milton Proposed $450.00 $800.00 $2,250.00 $650.00 $41.00 
2 times underlying fee; 4 

times with violation
$31.00 36+2.50 per unit



Rutland $320.00 $395.00 $1,020.00 $230.00 $70.00 
Not addressed on fee 

schedule
None none

S. Burlington

$913.00.  If Design Review is 

required, add $165.00.  

Garages are $50/per bay.  

$1363.00.  If Design Review 

is required, add $165.00.

$3513.00.  If Design Review is 

required, add $165.00.

$713.00.  If Design Review is 

required, add $165.00.

$43.00.  If Design Review is 

required, add $165.00.

If Notice of Violation not 

issued:  1.5 x original fee.   If 

Violation issued:  2 x 

original fee.  

Certificate of Occupancy:  

$153; Certificate of 

Compliance:  $40

153/40

Springfield $285.00 $385.00 $1,085.00 $285.00 $80.00 
Not addressed on fee 

schedule
$35.00 35

St. Albans $830.00 $1,030.00 $2,550.00 $675.00 $40.00 
Varies, but 3-6 x the original 

permit cost
$80.00 80

Town of Essex $510.00 $770.00 $1,520.00 $395.00 $60.00 
Not addressed on fee 

schedule

$25; Certificate of 

OCCUPANCY:  $85.00
25

Westford 1,000 1,500 5,000 1,000 $200.00 2 times underlying fee 75 75

Williston 1,000 1,250 2,500 625 $40.00 
1.5x regular fees OR 2x if 

result of enforcement 
$45.00 per inspection $60.00 per inspection



TOWN OF MILTON 
Planning & Economic Development Department 
43 Bombardier Road 
Milton, Vermont 05468-3205 
(802) 893-1186 
miltonvt.org 
 
 

 

 

MEMO 
TO:  Selectboard & Town Manager 
CC:    Planning Director 
FROM:   Amanda Pitts, Zoning Administrator 
DATE:   February 12, 2016 
SUBJECT:  ZONING PERMIT AMENDMENT FEE 
 
Owners of 27 Martell Road, James and Kristen Chalmers, received an approved Zoning Permit (#2015-
176) for an 8’x12’ shed and a 10’x14’ sugar house on 11/3/2015.  I performed a Certificate of Compliance 
inspection on 12/22/2015.  Upon the inspection, I found that a lean-to/roof extension approximately 5’ 
off the sugar house was built as well.  As listed in Section 130 of the Zoning Regulations,  “In accordance 
with Section 1000 of this Ordinance, no LAND DEVELOPMENT, excavation or construction shall be 
started on any land parcel or STRUCTURE and no EXPANSION, ALTERATION or change of USE shall 
be started within any existing STRUCTURE without a Zoning Permit issued by the Zoning 
Administrator.”  The definition of a structure per Section 1110 is, “Anything constructed or erected, the 
use of which requires location on or within the ground or attachment to something having location on or 
within the ground.”  A lean-to is attached to “something having location on or within the ground”, in 
this case, the sugar house and supporting pillars.  Because the lean-to/roof extension was not indicated 
on the approved Zoning Permit, I denied the Certificate of Compliance.   
 
I notified that owners that in order to come into compliance, they would need to obtain an amended 
Zoning Permit for the shed, sugar house and lean-to.  The owners have not yet submitted an application 
for the amended Zoning Permit.  The current fee for an amended Zoning Permit totals $50 for a 
residential property ($40 fee plus $10 to record the Memorandum of Municipal Action) and $60 for a 
commercial property ($50 fee plus $10 to record the Memorandum of Municipal Action).  In 2015, 23 
amended Zoning Permits were approved and charged the applicable amendment fee (4 for commercial 
properties, and 19 for residential properties). 
 
I recommend that the Selectboard do not waive the applicable amended Zoning Permit fee because the 
lean-to structure does require a Zoning Permit per our Zoning Regulations. 



 

 
TOWN OF MILTON, VERMONT  05468-3205 

 
Town Manager’s Office   • 43 Bombardier Road • 802-893-6655 • FAX: 893-1005 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
TO: Town of Milton Selectboard 
 
FROM:  Erik Wells, Director- Administration & Community Services 
 
RE: State of Vermont 457 Deferred Compensation Plan 
 
DATE:  February 16, 2016 
 
The Town has made available 457 Deferred Compensation Retirement Plans to staff as an 
added optional benefit to build savings for retirement in addition to VMERS. The Town and 
qualifying employees each make a contribution toward VMERS. 
 
A 457 Deferred Compensation Plan is entirely employee funded, there is no cost to the 
Town unless it decides to make a contribution. The quarterly administrative fees 
associated with the plan are withdrawn from each subscribing employees’ account.  
 
Of our 48 full-time employee workforce, currently 5 are enrolled in three different 457 
Deferred Compensation Plans that have been offered over the years. I would like to move 
away from our current offering of ICMA-RC and make available as the sole option moving 
forward for new enrollees the State of Vermont 457 Plan administered by Empower 
Retirement Services. Employees enrolled in other plans may continue to be in those if they 
choose, but I will discuss with them the advantages of this other plan. They may choose to 
transfer their funds into this plan, or start a new fund using this plan sponsor. I would like 
to leave this up to employees, and then phase out these multiple offerings over time so all 
employees are enrolled in one system moving ahead. This creates administrative 
efficiency. The decision whether to enroll and the management of money is entirely up to 
the employee – as the employer we provide this retirement option and resources for 
assistance. I had a meeting with our regional representative from Empower and we 
discussed the various options and systematically how this would work for staff.  
 
Employee contribution is made using a payroll deduction and it can be done either pre or 
post tax. The pre tax contributions will be taxed at the time the funds are withdrawn- each 
employee is in a different situation. The investment portfolio and design of the plan is 
decided upon by the employee using Empower Retirement as a resource. 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 

 
My reasons for switching our offering: 

• A lower annual administrative fee for the employee. 0.1% or 10 basis points - $1 for 
each $1,000 of fund value. This is reconciled quarterly.  

o ICMA-RC has an approximate 2.13% annual administrative fee. 
• Investment management fees are also applied depending on the investment option 

selected. These fees are applicable no matter what 457 Plan sponsor is being 
utilized, its part of the decision for an employee regarding the investment plan 
selected.  

• The State of Vermont 457 Plan is managed through Empower Retirement. It has a 
Vermont office with regional representatives who provide in person counseling to 
employees. Feedback I’ve received from employees is that they would like to be 
able to sit down with someone and go through retirement funding options and 
adjustments to make. I would have our representative come 1-2 times a year and 
provide a large group and individual meeting options to staff to assist in this 
decision making. I see this as a benefit to our staff to aid them in planning for their 
retirement. I would like to see more than 10% of our full-time workforce using a 
457 Plan, and the added educational opportunities this partnership can provide will 
aid in building enrollment I believe.  

• This process of searching for a better offering for staff started when I had difficulty 
in prompt communication with ICMA-RC. I asked other Vermont Towns via muni-
net who they are utilizing for 457 Plans and ICMA-RC and the State of Vermont 
were the two most popular responses.  

o Middlebury recently switched to the State of Vermont Plan for the same 
reasons I have identified – better communication and lower plans fees. 
Town Manager Kathleen Ramsey told me that they have been satisfied with 
this change.  

• The State of Vermont Board serves as the plan administrator and chooses funds as 
possible investments options for employees enrolled. The State Treasurer’s Office 
and the Vermont State Retirement Board take on the fiduciary responsibility for the 
plan. There is a large pool of enrolled employees across the public sector, which 
contributes to the low administrative fees.  

 
In order for the Town of Milton to offer this plan to its employees the Selectboard needs to 
adopt the resolution provided.  
 
 











































 

Selectboard Minutes Page 1 of 3          February 1, 2016 
 

Milton Selectboard Meeting Minutes 1 
February 1, 2016 6:00 P.M.  2 

Municipal Building Community Room 3 
       4 
Selectboard Members Present:  Darren Adams, Chair; John Bartlett, Clerk; John Cushing, Member; 5 
Kenneth Nolan, Member 6 

Selectboard Members Not Present:  none 7 

Staff Members Present: Donna Barlow Casey, Town Manager; Erik Wells, Director- Administration & 8 
Community Services; Jacob Hemmerick, Planning Director; Kym Duchesneau, Recreation Coordinator; 9 
Ben Nappi, Assistant Recreation Coordinator; Roger Hunt, Public Works Director; Mary Thompson, Town 10 
Manager’s Office Admin. Assist 11 
 12 
Others Present: John Palasik, Erin Demers, Jenn Taylor, Chris Taylor, Jamie Parent, Barry Genzlinger, 13 
Henry Bonges, Bill Kaigle, Amy Cook, Lucy Gibson, David Raphael, Courtney Lamdin  14 
 15 
I. Call to Order –  Adams called the meeting to order at 6:00 PM 16 
 17 
II. Flag Salute – Adams led the attendees in a Salute to the Flag.  18 

 19 
III. Agenda Review- None 20 

 21 
IV. Public Forum- None  22 

 23 
V. Appointments 24 

A. Jenn Taylor to Community Champions Awards Committee 25 
This committee’s term will now conclude at the end of August rather than the close of the fiscal 26 
year. Bartlett moved to appoint Jenn Taylor to serve a one year term on the Community 27 
Champions Awards Committee. Second by Cushing. Approved unanimously.  28 

 29 
B. Erin Demers to the Recreation Commission 30 
Bartlett moved to appoint Erin Demers to serve an unexpired three year term on the Recreation 31 
Commission. Second by Cushing. Approved unanimously.  32 

 33 
C. James Parent to the Economic Development Commission 34 
Bartlett moved to appoint James Parent to serve an unexpired three year term on the 35 

 Economic Development Commission. Second by Cushing. Approved unanimously. 36 
 37 

VI. New Business 38 
A. Eagle Scout Project- Disk Golf in Bombardier Park 39 

 Justin Beaudoin is working toward becoming an Eagle Scout and explained he would like to 40 
 provide planning, labor and materials with an estimated value of $2,000 to build a non-41 
 permanent 9 hole disc golf course and a non permanent kiosk for a log book at Bombardier 42 
 Park East and West. Bartlett moved to approve the resolution and accept the donation of 43 
 planning and labor materials from Eagle Scout Justin Beaudoin to construct a non-permanent 9-44 
 hole disc golf course throughout Bombardier Park East and West and a non-permanent kiosk for 45 
 a log book in Bombardier Park East. Second by Cushing. Approved unanimously.  46 
 47 



 

Selectboard Minutes Page 2 of 3          February 1, 2016 
 

B. Police Vehicle Purchase Exceeding $10,000 48 
Chief Brett Van Noordt discussed the purchase of a new police cruiser in the capital plan that 49 
was approved for purchase last August. The cruiser is set to be paid for and the Board wanted 50 
to discuss it as it related to the purchase in excess of $10,000 policy.  51 

 52 
C. FY ’17 CCRPC Unified Work Program Grant  53 

 Planning Director Jacob Hemmerick explained this is a $1,400 grant for CCRPC staff time that will 54 
 be utilized for GIS mapping to update Town maps. There is no local match required. Bartlett 55 
 moved to authorize staff to finalize the submission of the grant application to the CCRPC FY ’17 56 
 Unified Planning Work Program as presented. Second by Nolan. Approved unanimously.  57 
 58 

D. Milton 4D Project Conceptual Design Presentation 59 
David Raphael of LandWorks and Lucy Gibson of Dubois & King led a presentation and 60 
discussion to share the conceptual design and costs estimates their firms had developed for the 61 
project. This is a sidewalk and streetscape project to improve the streetscape, sidewalks and 62 
safety of the Route 7 Corridor through the heart of Milton. Board discussion focused on the 63 
cost estimates and phasing approach to implement the project. Staff will follow up with 64 
additional trailing cost details and refined phasing of the design for consideration for further 65 
discussion at a future Selectboard Meeting. 66 
 67 

VII. Old Business 68 
A. Update on H. 249 69 

 Barlow Casey stated this is the current house bill that would create councils of government 70 
 (COGs) out of the existing Regional Planning Commissions (RPCs). She testified before the House 71 
 Government Operations Committee and raised the Board’s concerns that this action would 72 
 diminish local control. Barlow Casey shared a draft resolution for the Board to ratify that 73 
 opposed the bill. The Board discussed the bill and the wording of the resolution. Bartlett moved 74 
 to amend the resolution per the discussion that evening and prepare for signature. Second by 75 
 Nolan. Approved unanimously. Note: The resolution wording was approved electronically via 76 
 email and verbally by Board members on February 10. It was signed electronically by the Board, 77 
 facilitated by Director of Administration Erik Wells. 78 
 79 
VIII. Manager’s Report 80 

Barlow Casey said with the warm weather mud is becoming an issue on some gravel roads. 81 
They may need to be posted earlier- public works will make a decision based on the weather 82 
this week. 83 
 84 

IX. Warrant Report #17 85 
Bartlett moved to approve Warrant Report #17 in the amount of $128,411.03. Second by 86 
Cushing. Motion passed 3-1 (Adams opposed).  87 
 88 

X. Minutes from January 16, January 18 and January 25 89 
Bartlett moved to approve the minutes from January 16, 18 and 25th as presented. Second by 90 
Cushing. Approved unanimously. 91 
 92 

XI. Adjournment  93 
 94 
Bartlett moved to adjourn the Selectboard Meeting. Second by Nolan. Approved unanimously. 95 
 96 



 

Selectboard Minutes Page 3 of 3          February 1, 2016 
 

Adams adjourned the meeting at 9:22 PM.  97 
   98 

Respectfully Submitted, 99 
 100 

___________________________________ Date: _______________________ 101 
John Bartlett, Selectboard Clerk 102 
 103 
Filed with Milton Town Clerk’s Office on this __________ day of __________, _____ 104 
 105 
 ATTEST: ____________________________________ Milton Town Clerk                          106 


	signed agenda 2.16.16
	Planning Fee Schedule Amendment_Memo_2015
	Planning Fee Schedule
	Propsosed Fee Schedule
	Propsosed Fee Schedule_No Markup
	Selectboard.Resolution.Fee Schedule
	Fee Analysis Spreadsheet
	Community Analysis Spreadsheet
	Zoning Permit Fee Waive
	MEMO, State of VT 457 Plans
	TOWN OF MILTON, VERMONT  05468-3205

	457 Plan Resolution
	Finance Outstanding Questions Strategies Discussion
	warrant 18
	SB Minutes 2.1.16 Draft

